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!NDEPENDENT AUDlTOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, its profit including other
comprehensive tncome, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report but does not include the Financial Statements
and our auditors' report thereon. The Board's Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this Auditors Report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information, and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

As and when we receive and read the Board's Report, in the event we conclude that there is a material

misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance in
the manner required.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Financial
Position, Financial Performance including other comprehensive income, Cash Flows and Statement of
changes in equi$ of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31,2024, and the
opening balance sheet as at the transition date of April 1,2023, included in these Financial Statements,
is based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2021. These statements were audited by the previous
statutory auditors, whose reports dated August31,2024, and September 8,2023, for the years ended
March 31,2024, and March 31,2023, respectively, expressed an unmodified opinion. The financial
information has been adjusted for differences in accounting principles arising from the Company's
transition to lnd AS, and these adjustments have been audited by us.

Report on Other Lega! and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 ("the Orde/'), issued by the Central
Governmentof lndiaintermsof sub-section(11)of section 143of theCompaniesAct,20l3,we
give in the "Annexure A" of this report a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 1a3(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the lnd AS prescribed under Section
133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2025 trom
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) Vr/ith respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure B" to this report;

(g) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial
remuneration is payable for the year ended March 31, 2025, by the Company to its directors.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 1 1

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have an impact on its
financial position in its Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any materialforeseeable losses.

iii. There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund during the year.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by

the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Relying on information, publication and other explanations provided by the software
product vendor, the Company and test checks carried out on the software application, we
report that, in our opinion the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining
their books of account having feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has
been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any
instances of the audit trail feature being tempered with. Additionally, the audit trail has
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For T. P. Ostwal Cg Associates I.r P
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124444WM1
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Annexure - A to the lndependent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of Armaan Real
Estate Private Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1, under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our
Report of even date)

(a)
(A)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant or Equipment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iXa)(A)
is not applicable to the Company.

(a)
(B)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ii (a)

vii

The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any Property, Plant or Equipment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iXb)
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no immovable
properties are held by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (c)of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or lntangible Assets under Development
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i) (e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. ln our opinion,
the frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and
appropriate. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us by the management, during the year the
Company has not made investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, paragraphs 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

iv

V

vi

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not granted any loan or made any investment or given any guarantees or securities as
defined under Section 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public nor has it received any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Central
Government of lndia has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-tax and
other material statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and there
are no undisputed statutory dues payable for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable as at March 31,2025.
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(b) According to the records and information & explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect
of lncome Tax and other material dues that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities to the extent applicable on account of any dispute.

vilt According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings or
in payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from any bank or financial institution or other lender.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on short
term basis. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or fraud on the Company noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the
Act has been filed by us in Form ADT4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government of lndia for the period covered by our audit.
The provisions of Cost audit and Secretarial audit are not applicable to the Company.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company has
not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiXc) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

ln respect of transactions with related parties,
(a) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,

section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(b) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management,
company is in compliance with the section 188 of the Act and requisite details have been
disclosed in the financial statements.

x
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xiv (a) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the Company is

not required to carry out the internal audit as per section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraphs
3(xii)(a) and 3(xiiXb) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia
Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviXa) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of lndia as per the
Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core lnvestment Company (ClC) as defined in the regulations made by

the Reserve Bank of lndia.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, there are no other
Core lnvestment Companies as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

As represented to us, the previous statutory auditor has resigned during the year due to the non-
availability of a valid Peer Review Certificate, which is mandatory under the applicable
guidelines. We have considered the reason for resignation and noted that no audit objections,
concerns, or issues were communicated by the outgoing auditor that would have an impact on

our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date based on the letter of support from the Parent Company. We,

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
paragraphs 3(xx) (a) and (b) are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xxi) is not applicable to the Company.

xviii

xix

For T. P. Osnval eg Associ ates T.I.P

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 1244MWM1001 50
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Esha P. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 14387 4

U DIN : 251 4387 4BMMKDY7l 94
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025
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ANNEXURE B to lndependent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements of Armaan Real

Estate Private Limited

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Gompanies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Armaan Real

Estate Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2025 in conjunction with our audit of the

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control with reference to the Financial Statements criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit

of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants

of lndia ('lCAl') (the "Guidance Note").

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference

to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit

of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our

audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed

risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

4
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Meaning of !nterna! Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controlwith reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management

and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

!nherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to these Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to these Financial Statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies

or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
March 31,2025, based on the internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For T. P. Ostwal eg Associates T r.P

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 124444WM1 001 50

Esha P. Shah
Partner
Membership Number: 14387 4

U DIN : 251 4387 4BMMKDYT 1 94

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025
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Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts are in INR Millions except per share data or as otherwise stated)

1. Corporate lnformation

Armaan Real Estate Private Limited (ClN: U70109MH2013PTC243947) is primarily engaged in the
business of Real Estate Development of Residential and Commercial Projects. The Company was
incorporated on 03'd June 2013 and has its registered office in Mumbai.

The Financial Statements are approved by the Company's Board of Directors at its meeting held on

April26,2025.

2. Material Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

(i) Statement of compliance-

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company prepared in

accordance with lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2024,the Company had prepared its
flnancial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under the Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, read togetherwith Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2021 ('Previous

GAAP'). Detailed explanation on how the transition from previous GAAP to lnd AS has affected the

Company's Balance Sheet, financial performance and cash flows is given under Note 2C.1

(ii) Basis of measurement
ihe Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except

for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant lnd AS:-
- Certain finanlial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial

instruments)
- Net defined benefit obligation;

(iii) Current versus non-current classification

The Company, as required by lnd AS 1, presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on

currenUnon-current classification. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets

and liabilities. Based on the nature of business conducted, the Company has ascertained its operating

cycle from Commencement of the Project till Completion of Project for the purpose of current and non-

current classification of assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities have been classified into current and

non-current based on their respective operating cycle.

(iv) Presentation currency and rounding off
All.amounts disclosed in financial statements are reported in millions of lndian Rupees and have been

rounded off to the nearest millions up to two decimals, except per share data and unless otherwise

stated. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off, have been reflected as "0" in the

relevant notes to these financial statements

(v) Going Concern
The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a
going concern.

(vi) Use of Estimates
ihe preparation of the financial information requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumpiions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

(vii) Gritica! Accounting estimates
a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (Proper$, plant and equipment, and investment
property)

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in changes in depreciation expense in future periods.

b) Defined benefit obligations
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is based on actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increase and mortali$ rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

2.2Propefi, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at costless accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable/allocable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use. The cost also includes direct cost and other
related incidental expenses.

( ii) Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to use, on written down value
method as per the useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule ll of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation method, useful life and residualvalue are reviewed periodically.

The carrying amount of PPE is reviewed periodically for impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount
of assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset's net selling price and value in use.

(iii) De-recognition
PPE are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of de-recognition.

2.3 Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue through the sale of under construction residential/commercial as well as

completed units which are recognized in the financials as inventories.

Revenue is recognized as follows:

(a) Revenue from real estate projects
The Company recognizes revenue, on execution of agreement and when control of the goods

or services are transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration (i.e.

the transaction price) to which the Company is expected to be entitled in exchange for those

(i)
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goods or services excluding any amount received on behalf of third party (such as indirect

taxes). An asset created by the Company's performance does not have an alternate use and
as per the terms of the contract, the Company has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed till date. Hence the Company transfers control of a good or service
over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time.

The Company recognises revenue at the transaction price which is determined on the basis of
the sale agreement entered into with the customer. The Company recognises revenue for
performance obligation satisfied over time only if it can reasonably measure its progress

towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The Company uses cost-based input method for measuring progress for performance

obligation satisfied over time. Under this method, the Company recognises revenue in

proportion to the actual project cost incurred as against the total estimated project cost.

ln a Joint development arrangement (JDA)wherein the landowner (s) (including Unit holders of
existing premises) provides development rights and in lieu of such rights the Company transfers

certain percentage of constructed area, the revenue is recognized over time using cost-based

input method of percentage of completion. Project costs include fair value of such development
rights received and this fair value is accounted for on the date of handover to the Company by

the landowner(s).

The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodically and consider

changes in estimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in estimates is recognized
prospectively in the period in which such changes are determined.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to

the customer. lf the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before

the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

lf a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the

customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to

accounting policies of financial assets in note 1.2.6 Financial instruments - initial recognition

and subsequent measurement.

(b) Other income
Other incomes are accounted on an accrual basis.

2.4 Financial lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entity. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
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cash receipts or payments over the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

(i) Financial assets
(a) lnitia! measurement
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value Trade
receivables are initially recorded at transaction value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial

recognition of financial asset.

(b) Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost, if both of the following criteria are met:

a. These assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows; and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on

the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the

Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FWOC!)

Financial assets are classified as FWOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. These assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by

collecting contractualcash flows and selling the financial assets; and
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on

the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value movements are recognised in the Other Comprehensive lncome (OCl). On

derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Any financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost

or as FWOCI, are classified as FWPL. Gain or losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

iv. Equity instruments
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Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by

an acquirer in a business combination are classified as FWPL, and measured at fair value
with allchanges recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition.

Wtren the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. ln that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

(d) lmpairment of financial assets

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on

i. Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company

determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. lf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. lf, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial 'recognition, then the Company reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the

expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which

results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all

cash shortfalls), discounted at the original ElR.

(ii) Financial liabilities

(a) lnitia! measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All flnancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's
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financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and financial
guarantee contracts.

(b) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. EIR amortisation is included as finance
cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) De-recognition

Financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the Company's
financial statement when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liabili$ is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statement if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

(aii) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liabili$ takes place either:
(a) ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(b) ln the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's

ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by

selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs:
i. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities.
ii. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
iii. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable. For assets and liabilities that are
recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets

and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and

the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the financial statement comprise cash at banks and on hand,

demand deposit and shortterm deposits, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and shortterm deposits, as defined above.

2.6 lncome taxes

(i) Gurrent income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be

refunded from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are in

force at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is

recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in Other Comprehensive
lncome or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities where it has a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on

a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
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Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(a) \Mren the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) ln respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to

the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised

outside the Statement of Profit and Loss. Such deferred tax items are recognised in correlation

to the underlying transaction either in Other Comprehensive lncome or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected

to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be

received or settled.

2.T lnventories

(i) Construction work in progress

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost

includes cost of land, materials and consumables, development rights, rates and taxes,

construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other

incidental expenses.

(ii) Finished stock of completed projects

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net

realisable value.

2.8 Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) A provision is recognised when:

(a) The Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b) lt is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation; and
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(c) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(ii) lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. \Men discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a flnance
cost.

(iii) A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present

obligation that may, but probably may not, require an outflow of resources. A contingent liability

also arises in extreme cases where there is a probable liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably.

(iv) \Mrere there is a possible obligation or a present obligation such that the likelihood of
oufflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.9 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of qualifying assets
are capitalised as part of their costs.

Borrowing costs are considered as part of the asset cost when the activities that are necessary

to prepare the assets for their intended use or sale are in progress.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense, in the period in which

they are incurred.

2.10 Segment reporting

Based on the "management approach" as defined in lnd AS 108 Operating Segments, the

Chairman and Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance based

on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Segment revenue and

expense include amounts which can be directly attributable to the segment and allocable on a
reasonable basis. Segment assets and liabilities are assets/liabilities which are directly

attributable to the segment or can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

lncome/expenses/assets/liabilities relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a

reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as unallocated income/ expenses/ assets/

liabilities.

2.11 Employee benefits

(i) Salaries and wages

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of
rendering the services are recognised up to the end of the reporting period and are measured

at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity is calculated on the basis

of actuarial valuations carried out at the reporting date and is charged to the Statement of Profit

and Loss. The actuarialvaluation is computed using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,

excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on

plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
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recognised immediately in the financial statement with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not

reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

(iii) Defined Contribution Plan

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund for all its employees. Contributions

are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to such

benefits

2.12Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profiU(loss) for the year attributable to equity

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profiU(loss) for the year attributable

to equity shareholders and the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during the year are

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

28, First-time Adoption of lnd As

28. 1 Exemptions Availed on First Time Adoption of lnd As

A. Optional Exemptions Availed

lnd AS 101, First-time Adoption of lndian Accounting Standard, allows first-time adopters certain
exemptions from the retrospective application or certain requirements under lnd AS. The Company has
accordingly applied the following exemptions:

(i) Deemed Cost Property, Plant and Equipment and lntangible assets

lnd AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognized in the financial statement as at the date of
transition to lnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as the deemed cost as at the
date of transition. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its properly, plant and
equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date.

The Company has elected to measure intangible assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its
deemed cost on the date of transition to lnd AS.

(ii) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with lnd AS 109 on the basis of facts
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to lnd AS.

(iii) Leases
The Company has applied the modified retrospective approach in applying lnd AS 116

B. Mandatory Exceptions

(i) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP Financial Statements, the
Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates under lnd AS, as there
is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under
lnd AS but not required under previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting
dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in preparation of
financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

n
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Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost.
Determination of impairment allowance (ECL) on trade receivables.

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

lnd AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets and liabilities on the basis
of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the standard permits
measurement of financial assets and liabilities accounted at amortized cost based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is lmpracticable.
Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets and liabilities based
on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition. Measurement of financial assets and
liabilities accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable.

(iii) lmpairment of Financial Assets

At the date of transition to lnd AS, determining whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since the initial recognition of a financial asset would require undue cost or effort, the
Company has recognized a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
at each reporting date until that financial instrument is derecognized.

C The following Reconciliations provide a quantification of The effect of differences arising from the
transition From Previous GAAP To lnd AS as required under lnd AS 101

(a) Reconciliation of total Equity as at 1 April2023 and as at31March2024
(b) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March2024

(i) Reconciliation of totalequity as at 1 April,2023 and 31 March2024

(ii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March2024

Particulars Refer
Note D

As at 31 March
2024

As at 1 April
2023

Total equi$ (shareholder's funds) as per
lndian GAAP

146.16 (0.31)

Adiustments:
Adjustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 12 (i) 0.36 (20.05)

Adjustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 19 0.09 (0.32)

Adiustment of Provision for Tax (ii) 9.47
Adjustment to revenue due to change in
timing of revenue recognition (lnd AS 1 15)

201.51 412.60

Adjustment to cost due to changes in timing
of revenue recoqnition

-201.58 (332.14)

lncrease in other comprehensive income (0.09) 0.00
Totalequity (shareholder's funds) as per lnd
AS

155.93 59.79

Particulars Refer
Note D

For the year ended
31March2024

Profit after Tax as per lndian GAAP 146.47

Adjustments:
Adjustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 12 (i) 20.38
Adjustment to revenue due to change in timing of revenue
recoqnition (lnd AS 1 15)

(ii) (211.0e)

Adjustment to cost due to changes in timing of revenue
recoqnition

130.55

Adiustment arising on adoption of lnd AS 19 0.41



Particulars Refer
Note D

For the year ended
31March2024

Adjustment of Provision for Tax 9.47
Total Adiustments $0.27)
Profit after Tax as per lnd AS 96.21

Other Comprehensive lncome
Remeasurement Gain / Loss of defined benefit plan
lncome tax effect on above

( iii) (0.10)
0.02

TotalComprehensive lncome as per lnd AS 96.13
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-(i) Deferred Tax

Under Previous GAAP the Company had not recognized deferred tax on carried forward business
which has now been recognized as per guidance under lnd AS 12 'lncome taxes.

(ii) Revenue from contracts with customers

As per Previous GAAP Policy

Revenue from sale of constructed properties for all projects is recognised in accordance with the
Revised Guidance Note issued by lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") on
"Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (Revised 2012)". As per this Guidance Note, the revenue
have been recognised in terms of the percentage of actual projects costs incurred thereon to total
estimated projects cost, provided all of the following conditios are met at the reporting date:

Required critical approval for commencement of the projects have been obtained.
At least 25o/o of estimated construction and development costs (excluding land cost) have been
incurred.
At least 25% ot the saleable project area is secured by the Agreement to Sell/application forms
(containing salient terms of the agreement to sell); and
At least 10o/o of the total revenue as per agreement to sell are realized in respect of these
agreements.

As per lnd AS, an entity shall recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is

transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

(iai) Remeasurement gain / loss of net defined benefit plan

Under Previous GAAP the Company recognized actuarial gains and losses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Under lnd AS, all actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the other
comprehensive lncome. Further to the above, the deferred tax effect on the above transaction has
also been regrouped from Statement of Profit and Loss to other comprehensive income as per
guidance under lnd AS 12'lncome taxes.
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Balance Sheet

Particulars

I ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Financial assets

i. Investnents
ii. Other financial assets

Deferred ta,x assets (net)

Total non-current tssets

2 Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets

i. Trade receivables

ii. Loans

iii. Cash and cash equivalents

iv. Other bank balances

v. Other fuxancial assets

Income tax assets (net ofprovision)
Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

U EQUITYANDLIABILITIES

I Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity
Total equity

No.
As at

March 31,2025
As 8t

March 31,2024

(Amt in INR Millions)

As at
April 01,2023

3

Nole

7

8

9

10

11

12

l3
t4

141.84

0.85

27.32

0.20

2.63

9.18

15.43

1.50

151.00

0.53

1.02

0.02

35.15

2.79

1.67

90.80

5. l0
93.47

2.67

20.40

0.s0 0.73 r.06

0.05

0.53

0.42 0.30

0.92 1.03 1.64

612.?0 646. l8 568.90

4
5

6

794,72 850.82 785,79

15

16
0.20

302.20

0.20

155.73

0.20

59.s9

302.40 155.93 59,79

LIABILITIES

2 Non-current liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities

3 Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings
ii. Trade payables

A. Total outstanding dues ofmicro and small enterprises

B. Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other than micro and small enterprises

iii.Other fi nancial liabilities
Other cunent liabilities
Provisions

Current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilitiss

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary ofsignificant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes I to 43 are integal part ofthe special purpose financial statements

For T.P. Ostwal [g Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fim Registration No: 124444W1001 50W

l7
6

1.26 0.66 0.31

20.05

1,26 0.66 20,36

18

l9

20

2t
22

23

471.50 4s6.50 s 16.50

0.27

0.91

10.06

179.52

0.00

5.13

1.05

5. l0
9.20

0.00

10.25

8.s0
20.43

148.59

0.00

50.99

491.99 695,27 707.27

493,24 69s.93 727.63

795.64 851.85 787,42

For and on behalfof the Board ofDirectors of
Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 1 09MlI2O13m C2439 47

&=b qrvw
Esha P. Shah
Partner

Membership N0.143874

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4pi126,2025

Ramesh Ludhani
Director
DIN No. 06992037

Rakesh Gupta
Director
DINNo. 10872369

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Lir*! -,rBr i*)

V,:r .:ai - 13

&

,.1 i,l

t-
f-.D

*
F
*

Date:Apil26,2025 Date:4pi126,2025

795.64 851.85 787.42

S;ln{
13,ri'3C7

| (, .i. nT'JS

S:: r. r ',,: ,,1 i'l :9,



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 I 09MH20 I 3 PTC243947

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

INCOME
L Revenue from operations

IL O,ther income

IIL Total Income

IV. EXPENSES

Cost of construction and development

Changes in inventories offinished goods and project work-in-progress

Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

V. Prolit (loss) before tax (IU-IY)

Tax expense:

Current tax

Defened tax

YL Totsl tsr expenses

VIL Profit (loss) for the year (V-V!

YI[. Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassilied to prolit or loss:

Remeasurements of postcmployment benefi t obligations

Income tax on the above

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of t x

IX. Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year

)C Earnings per equity share:
Basic and diluted eamings per share (face value of( l0/- each) (In t)

Summary of signifi cant accounting policies

The accompanying notes I to 43 are integral part ofthe special purpose financial statements

For T.P. Ostwal & Assocdates LLP
Cha(ered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 124444W100150W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN:

Note

No,

24

25

26

27

28

29
j

30

For the yeor ended

March 31,2025

s90.4s

3.03

(Amt in INR Millions)

For the year ended

March 31,2024

476.17
7.19

593.47 483.36

298.37

33.48

8. l5

390.s7
(77.28)

0.23

56.72

0.33

34.2t

396.9s 347.83

196.52 r35.53

49.90 59.64

(20.32)

49.85 39.32

r46.67 96.21

(0.26) (0. r0)
0.020.07

(0.20) (0.07)

146.48 96.13

2

@1 Rv*
Esha P. Shah
Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai

Date: 4pi126,2025

Ramesh Ludhani
Director

DIN No. 06992037

Place: Mumbai

Date: Apil26,2025

Rakesh Gupta
Director

DINNo. 10872369

Place: Mumbai

Date: Apil26,2o25

Sulefl
11 i,-'.i(;1,

Lr,l 'ir.irUs

ST niri' ' 
- t'i 'rg

Lr)r, r.; 8i ,\i i,

Mririar '13



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 I 09MH20 I 3 PTC24394 7

Statement of Cash Flow

Particulan

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profiU(loss) before tax
Adiustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Interest on income-tax refund

Interest on deposits with bank
Finance cost

Provision for Gratuity
Operating profit (loss) before working capital changes

Chanpes in workinq caoital :
([ncrease) / decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / decrease in inventories
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets

(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets, other assets (current and non-current)
Increase (decrease) other fi nancial liabilities
Increase (decrease) in trade payables

lncrease (decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash flows generated from / (used in ) operating activities
Income taxes (paid) / refunded (net)

Net cash flows generated from / (used in ) operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Repayment of loans granted

Investrnent in Fixed Deposit

Sale of investments

lnterest received

Net cash flows generated from / (used in ) investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of borrowin gs

Proceeds from bonowings
Interest paid

Net cash llows generated from / (used in ) financing activities

Net (decrease/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (q

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year (refer note 10)

Opening Balances

Short-term bonowings

Changes as per Statement of Cash Flow
Short-term borrowings

Closing Balances

Short-term bonowings

For T.P. Ostwal & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: I 24444W1001 50W

196.49 129.08

(126.42) (12.64)
33.48 (77.28)

2s.97 (t4.76)
0.75 92.50

(1s.33) 10.37
(t2.s7) 17.s7

(r3e.3e) (30.e3)

(37.01) 113.9r
(103.s0) (6.00)

(140.s0) 107.91

0.65

0.53

0.17

5. t0
0.05

7.130.75

1.93 12.44

For the year ended

March 31,2025

196.s2

o.23

(0.68)

0.10

0.33

(Amt in INR Millions)

For the year ended

March 31,2024

l3s.s3

0.33

(0.00)
(7. I 8)

0.t5
0.25

A

c

B

(6s.00)

80.00

(0. l 0)

(60.00)

(0.15)

(60.1s)

023.68) 60.20

rsl.00 90.80

151.00

Notes:
i. The accompanying notes I to 43 are integral part ofthe special purpose financial statements
ii. TheaboveStatementofcashFlowhasbeenpreparedunderthe'IndirectMethod'assetoutinthelndianAccountingStandard(IndAS)7-"statementofCash

Flow'.

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with INrD AS 7

4s6.s0

1s.00

471.50

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN : U70 1 09MH20I3PT C2439 47

For the year ended

March 31,2025
For the year ended

March3l,2024

516.50

(60.00)

456.50

e,^ qw
Esha P. Shah
Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai
Date: April26,2025

Ramesh Ludhani
Director
DIN No. 06992037

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

Rakesh Gupta
Director
DIN No. 10872369

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

1,. .:u;t1

1, ASS

-..1s ('
f'

().
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ei
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f-
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., :"i

i,ir:rar .13

14.90
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Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 1 09MH2 0 I 1PTC2 4 39 4 7

Statement of Changes in Equity

A) Equity share capital (refer note no 15)

Particulars

Opening balance
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Closing balance

Particulars

For T,P. Osnx,al Gg Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 124444W1001 50W

As at
March 31,2025

0.20

(Amt in INR Millions)

As at
March 31,2024

0.20

Balance as at April 01,2024
Profit for the year

Items ofother comprehensive income for the year

As at March 31,2025

Balance as at April 01,2023
First time adoption of IND AS
Profit for the year

Items ofother comprehensive income for the year

As at March 31,2024

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes I to 43 are integral part ofthe special purpose financial statements

155.E0 (0.07) 15s.73

For and on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors of
Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 I 09M112013m C2439 47

Retained earnings

I 55.80

146.67

302.47

Other comprehensive
income

(0.07)

(Amt in INR Millions)

Total Other Equity

155.73

146.67

$.271 302.20

(0.5 r)
60. r0
96.21

0.00

(0.07)

(0.5 l)
60. l0

96.21

(0.07)

g1 R#t.^ ,1

Esha P. Shah
Partner

Membership No.143874

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

Su l'r g

l'f, i!/,
Ramesh Ludhani
Director
DINNo.06992037

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

Rakesh Gupta
Director
DINNo. 10872369

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26,2025

o-
i
t' t"

c

M

l,i:aU'

0.20 0.20

(0.20)

--i)

rai 13.



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 1 09MH20 13 PTC243 947

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

3 Tangible assets

Particulars

Year ended March 31. 2025

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April l, 2024

Balance as at March 31,2025 JAI

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April l, 2024
Depreciation charge during the year

Balance as at March 31,2025 [Bl

Net carrying amount as at March 3f ,2025 [E-Fl

Year ended March 31.2024

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April l, 2023

Balance as at March 31,2024 ICI

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April l, 2023
Depreciation charge during the year

Balance as at March 3f,2024 [Dl

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 [C-Dl

Net carrying amount as at April 1,2023

Motor Car Computers

(Amt in INR Millions)

Total

t.47 0.05 1.51

t.47 0.0s 1.51

0.74
0.23

0.04 0.79
0.23

0.97 0.04 l.0t

0.50

1.47

0.00

0.05

0.50

1.51

1.47 0.05 1.51

0.41

0.33
0.45
0.33

0.04
0.00

0.74 0.04 0.79

0.73

1.06 1.06

0.00

0.01

0.73

t"'r;''ff:



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CI N : U 70 I 09 M H 20 I 3 PTC21 394 7

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Particulan

lnv6tmetras
Unquoted, fulty paid up

Inv6mql in equity ${6 @ied at @st

Rosde Resl Eshle Prt Lld (4,500 equity slEe of Rs. I 0^ st\ fully pcid)

Totsl

Other finrncirl assets (non-current)
Fired deposrLs Erlh onginal matuity of more fiu 12 mon0s

Total

Deferred aax as$eh (net)

a) Income tax expens6

Current tsr
Current tar on profits for the year
Adjuslments for curot h\ ofprior periods

Total current lar erpen$e

Deferred income tar lirbility / (Net) (oet)
Origino$on ud reveEal of tmporary differme
Tat erpcnse for tbe yqr

(b) Rsotrciliation of efffftive t r rate

Prefit /(lo!t) Defor tu
Strtuaory ircomc tu mte
Tar using thc compuy's dom6ti. tu mt

Tsr cffect of:
Pemmenl Disallowmce

Inter6t on income tu payable

Othere

Tu as calculated

Delernd lar (u$tr) / lirbiliaiB

Prop€4', plut ud equipmml

CraluiN provision

Disallowuce ds 438(h)

Differace in method of @gnition of reymue ed relded 6l b€tw@ tlx a@uts ud b@ks

Total

Deferred tor (sssets) / liabilitio
Property, plul ud equipmmt

Grauity provision

Unabsorbed deprecislion

Broughtforuud losr
Disallowu@ r,/s 438(h)

Differo@ in method of rsognition of revaue ed relsled cost beNen tax a@uts ed b@ks

Total

Invenlories
(valued at loNer ofcost ud net realisable value)

Costruction work-in-progrcs
Finrshed propenis

Total

Trade receivables
Usecured, coNidered good

Totsl

Total r$eivablgr
r Refer Trade r@ivable €eing in Nole 8.1

As rt
March 31,2025

A! sa

Msrch 31,2024

(Ant in INR Millions)

As rt
April 01,2023

0.05

0.05

0.53

0.53

49.90 59.64

49.90 59.64

(0.05) (20.32)

49J5 3932

t%.52
25.t1yo

4946

135.53

25.17%
34.u

0.3't 0.0r

5.2t
o.o2

49.85

(0.02)

(0 0E)

0.02

o.o2

39J2

Net bslorce I on
Aprill,2O24

Rcogtri!.d itr Prelia Reognl$d
in OCIud t{s

Nct D.fcred Ts (Aet)
/ Llsbility u oo Mrrcb

3rJ02s

(0. l0)
(0.32)(0.07)

(o30) (0.0s) (0.01

(0.09)

(0. I 7)

(0.02)

(0.02)

Net bslance is on
April 1,2023

Recognised ia Prolit
and Ips

Reognised
in OCI

Net Deferred Tar
(Assea)/Liabilitysotr

March 31J024

(0.05)

(0.08)

(0 0l)
(0.05)

(0.04)

(0 ll)
0.0t

0.05

(0.02)

(2o.27)

0.02

(0.0e)

(0. l7)

20.24

(0.02)

(0.02)

Not6:

entity h6 recognised defered tu Nets on unabsorbed business lossc on the bois ofprudence.

income tqes levied by the sme tax authority

20.05 (20.3?) 0.02

646. I t 56E.90

612.70

612.70 646.18 568.90

t41.84 15.43 2.79

1

w ,l

l,l1't4 t5.43 2.79



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70 I 09MH2013 PTA$917

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Particulan

8.1 Trrdc reivablc agcirg rnalyrb

2024

Iaans .
Ire to M€mbeE repeFble on derud
LoG to Employffi

Total

'Repayable on delMd md interBt &e l@ givq ro wlated partiB

l0 Csh and sh equivrletrtr
CEh in hod
Bdffi with bails - in crct a@uts #

Fixed deposit witlr original ffiity of l6s th4 3 mn0E

Totsl

fl lrcludes balowt with bonkt - in RERA rpecified rc@uts, whtch thall be wed only lor spcilled ptrposes u defined under Reol Estate (Regulation
and Developnen,) Ad, 2016.

ll Otber Bonk Bslsnc6
Fixed depcit with original m8tuity ofmorc tho firc months but ls the twelve monoE

Totrl

t2 Othcr lioatrcial assets
(UNsure4 @Nidqed g@d )
DepGits with othets

Unbilled revow
Acrued Inter6t on Fixed D€posits

Total

13 Incomc tlr Nets (ret of provision)
Advme trx ud TDS

Total

Other curreot assctr
Prepaid qpffi
AdvilG lo supplis
Defened revaue expmditure

GST input Tu Credit

Other r@ivabl6
Othq advuq 0.1 I 0.22

9

As rt
March 31, 2025

0.85

A! ot
March 31, 2024

(Ama in INR Millions)

As aa

April 0r, 2023

1.20

0.30

, 20

0.47

1.57

22.32

5.00

E4.61

66.39

35.88

54.91

27,32 151.00 90.80

0.53 5. l0

0.53 5.r0

0.19

001

0. t8

0.16

0.07

0. l8
93.26

0.03

0.20 1.02 93.47

2.61 0.02 2.67

2.63 0.02 2.67

G

c4
c)

0.l l
4.'l I

0.03

t9.75

15.27

0.05

0.60

19.53

0.65

3.70

PsrticulrB
Outstanding for following periode from dote oftranssctiotri

TotalL6! thatr 6
monthr

6 month - I
Yeers

1-2Yero 2-3Y68 More thrn 3 Ysrs

(s) Utrdisputed Tnde Reivabl6 @Nidsed g@d

(b) Urdisputed TEd€ R*ivable wlriclr have signiEc&t ircree in
Cr€dit Risk

(c) Undisputod Trsde Reivabl6 - credit imlEired

(d) Disputed Tmde R@ivabls oroidered god
(e) Disputed Tnde R@ivabls which hove signifi@t incrw in credil
Risk

(D Disputed Trade Rffivabls - credit impsired

t37.76 4.08 141.84

Psrticuhn
Outstandiog for followiog periods from date ofarrnsactions

TotalLN thsn 5
monthc

6 monahs - I
Yan

I - 2 Years 2 - 3 Yeart Morc than 3 Years

(E) Undisputed Trsde R@ivablc oroidued gmd

O) Undisputed TEdc Rseivable which have signifi@t irc@e in
Credit Risk

(c) Undisputed Tnde Rsivable - credit impaired

(d) Disputed Tnde Rreivable omidered good

(e) Disputed Trade R*ivable *trich hove signifi@t ircrw in sedit
Risk

(f) Disputed Trade Rffiivable - credit inpaired

t5.43 15.43

Particularo

Outstanding for following periods from date oftraos8ctiotri

TotalL6s thsn 6
months

6 mooths - I
Yeers

1- 2 YsE 2-3YeaE Morc ahatr 3 YEE

(a) Undisput€d TEde R#ivabls midred good

@) Undisputed Tmde Roeiyabl6 *fiich hav€ signifi@t ircree in

C.edit Nsk

(c) Undisputed Tmde R@ivsbls - qedit impsired

(d) Disputed Tmde Rseivablc comidered god

(e) Disput€d Tmde Reeivabls which have signit@t incrw h crcdit
Rbt
(f) Disput€d Tnde R@ivabl6 - credit immired

2.79 7,79

14

Totsl

c,

Cq 9.18 35.15 20.40



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U7 0 I 09MH20 I 3 PTC213 917

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

15 Equity Shrrc Crpitrl

rt

lhrB qpitd
No. of Shru (ADt iD INR Mi[iotr3

4q000 0.40

20,000 0.20

Shssof t l0anh
.rd fully P.id-up

Shrc of I l0 *h 6rlly paid.up

l5.l REoocilirtiotrof[umbcrofEquityShrBrodrmouotoualtroditrgrtthcbcgitrringildrtthccrdofthcYcrr

Prrticuhn Ai rt }hrch 31,2025
No. of Shrro lmt h INR Milliotr

20,000 0.20

15.2

15,3

16 Othcrcquity

i R*ined mings
iiOttsmrchosiwirw

Totd

i Retriocd Ermiogs
Opoirg bal@
Fist ti@ ldopti@ ofIND AS
Add:/ (ls): prcfiY(16) fq thc yw
Closing bolancc

A3.t Much 31,2024

No. of Sherer (Ant in INR MillioN)

40,000 0.40

20,000 0.20

0.20

A! .t Mrrch 31,2024
No, of Shrro (Ama in INR Milliont)

20,000 0.20

(Amt itr INR Millions)

At rt April 0l , 2023

No,ofSharc Amount

40,m0

20,ofi)

A! rt April 01,2023
No. ofSharo Amounl

20,000

Ar 8t
April 01, 2023

59.59

0.40

0.20

o.20

during thc yca
od of ttc yor

of dl prcfsBtiol lltlmts, ia prcpotiq to thcL shareiplditrS!, itr lhc fl@r of liquiddio. Eeh she€holder is dtialad to @ vo& pq she hcld,

15.4 Dctrili of ihrH isrucd otheryirc thrtr for sh, i$u6 s borus shere rnd / or ihr6 bougha brck duritrt thc lmmedirtely prseditrg 5 ysn - Nonc.

15,5

Particulan Ar rt
Msrch 31,2025

As ra
Msrch 31,2024

302.47

(0.27\
t55.80

(0.07) 0.00

302.20 r55,?3 59.59

r55.80

t46.67

59.J9

9621

(0.51)
60.r0

3/,.2.47 155.80 s9J9

ii Other comprehctrrivc incomc
Opeung bol@
First tire ldopti@ of IND AS

Add / (Lss): oths mpdmivo ill.@ fq the )w
Cloring brhnce

(0.07) 0.00

0.00

Closing balancc (i+ii) 302.20 155.73 59.59

Nrturc 8trd purporc of reno
i Retrincd srnitrgr

R*aircd miags re the prcfits that thc Ccpary hs flrD€d till dElr, lffi any Bosfffi !o debohre r€dmptis lMg dividqds q olhq distsibutioN p6id to shuehold6.

A!.t Mrrch 31,2025

No. otshtra 7r Holding

20,000 100

A! ra M.rch 31,2024

No. ofsh.B 7. Holding

20p00 100.00

Ar rt April 0l , 2023

No. ofshrB held 7. Holding

19899 99.995%

oI sh.rdDlder

LuE Devclopqs 8!d RE lty Linird (Forurly lotow 6 IKP Holdihgr llnl,ed
Holdlngs Pttw le U nl ted)

As rt Mrrch 31,2025
No.ofshrs %Eolding

20,000 100

Ai st Mrrch 31,2024
No. ofrhrrs % Eolding

20,000 100.00

As rt April 0l , 2023

No. of.hrrq held % Holding

t9,999 99.995%

ofrhrrcholder

Lrts Developqs ud Rcdty Linitd (Forrurly lotow 6 AXP Holdings Linited
Holdings PiwE Anited)

A! rt M8rch 31,2025 tu rt March 31, 2024

No, ofShrro 9/e oftotsl shrH No. ofSharo Yo oftotrl shsH

Y. Chlnge during the

7o oftot.l shrE

ntmc

100.00

ycrr

100

LohE Devclopss ed Reday Linitfd, (Fomerly
@ AKP Holdings Linited @d IXP Holdings
Linited)

LotB Dsvelopqs ond Ralry Li6it€d (Fomily
os IKP Holdlngt Anihd ond AKP Holdings

Pendit

bniled)

Yo Changc during the
ycar

20,000 100.00

A! rt Much 31,2024

No.ofShrrcg 7.oftotrl3hrru

20,000 100

20,000

As .t 3l Mrrch 2023

No. ofShrs

19,999

4



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN: U70I 09MH20t tPrc2$917

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Psrticuhn

17 Provisiotr (trotr curelt)
ProvtliE for @Dloyc boclib

Cratuity

Totsl

18 Borrcwingr
Unscured
From holding mmpury

From odrcr body @rpor8t6t

Total

' Repayable M derEd md inter6t fr€ loffi iom uelated putie

19 Tradepayabla
i) Tot8l outrtanding dB of miqo ed srull oterprisB
ii) Total oustanding dues ofcredilon other tha micrc md small enterprisG

Total

19,1 Trsde piysble ageing mhedulc

2025

20 Othcr fioancial liabilitis (current)
Ret€ntion money payable

Ssuity depo6il payable

Total

21 Other curelt liobilitiB
Statutory dB psyable

- G@ds md $ryiw tlx
- Tq deduct€d al sre

Othq stalutory du6 payable

- Providqt fund

- ESIC Payebl€

Advuce ftom slomes
Employe boefit peyable

Provision for qpffi
Defetred reviluo
Uability udq rcdwelopm@t

Totsl

22 Provisioos (currert)
Prcvision for employe benefits for

Graluity

Total

5. l0 5.4) 10.06

15.00

5.10 20.43 10,06

0.t0
0. t4
0.01

2.t4
0.02

0.00

7.92
(0.10)

0.00

8.95

9.20 148.59 179.52

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

50.99

o.76

0.80

4.30

81.36

59.t9

2.60

0.55

8. l7

t37.53

rcvaue proceeds, net of rcvauc |@gniz€d.

23 Curctrt tar liabiliaig (nct)

Provision for hx (Net of t&\6 paid)

(Amt h INR Milliotrs)

As at
Mrrch 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As aa

April 01, 2023

0.31l 26 0.6

0.66 0Jl

41t.50 391.50

65.00

451.50

65.00

471.50 456.50 5r6.50

6.lE
to.25
8.50

o.27

0.91

6.rt 16.75 l.l9

Perticuhs
Outstandinc for the followinc oeriod from the dste of trsnsactions

Totsl
L*s thrn I vdr 1-2Yeen 2-3Yon

More than 3
Yeem

Undirput d
(i) Mirc sd small aterprisB
(iDorh6

Dirpuaed
(i) Micro ud strEll @teryrisB
(ii)Oth€R

5.t3
t.05 0.00

5,r3
1.05

Particularo
thc the dst€ transactions

Total
L63 ahar 1 vEr l-2Ycan 2-3Ycan

More thon 3
Yeare

UDdisputcd
(i) Micrc ud small al,erprisE
(ii)OtI'6

Disputed
(i) Miqo ed srull oterpris
(ii) Ohets

to.25
t.50 0.00

l0J5
t,50

PuticuhB Totsl
Iss than I yer I-2YeoB 2-3Y€an More than 3

Yearu
Undilputcd
(i) Micro ad small aterprisB
(ii) OtheE

Dirputcd
(i) Micro ud small ateryrisG
(ii) Otlpn

0.27

0.91 0.00

0.27

0.91

Totsl

r!nt.trn.lint

Otraclnnrlinr il Irom the dxte o

:t&
' 50.99



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CIN : U70 1 09MH20 1 3 PTC24 3 94 7

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Particulars

24 Revenue from operations
Revenue from projects

Total

25 Other income

(a) lnterest Income
(i) Interest income on

-Fixed deposits with banks

-Others

-Income-tax refund

(b) Maintenance Charges recovered

Total

26 Cost ofconstruction and development
Land and development right expenses

Construction cost

Permission and approval fees

Other construction cost

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance cost

Total

27 Changes ofinventories offinished goods and project work-in progress
Opening balance
Construction work in progress

Finished goods

Total (i)

Closing balance
Construction work in progress

Finished goods

Total (ii)

Total (i)-(ii)

28 Employee benefits expense
Salaries & wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity Expenses

Less: Transferred to cost ofconstruction and development

Total

29 Finance costs

Bank gurantee charges

Lcss: Transferred to cost ofconstruction and development

Total

30 Other expenses

CSR Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Maintenance Expeneses

Rates & Taxes

Legal & professional fees

OIIice Expenses

Selling expenses

- Stamp duty and registration charges

- Brokerage

- GST expenses on sales

Bank charges

Payment to Auditor

- Statutory audrt fees

For the year ended
March 31,2025

590.45

(Amt in INR Millions)

For the year ended
March 31,2024

476.17

590.45 476.r7

0.68 7. l8
0.01

0.00

2.34

3.03 7.19

23.29

184.71

3.68

8l.20
5.39

0. t0

17.77

279.78
69.85

13.51

o<,

0. l5

298.37 390.57

646. I E 568.90

646.r8 56E.90

646. r 8

612.70

612.70 646.18

33.48 (77.28)

13.20

0.02

0.33

(s.3e)

9.26

(e.s2)
0.25

8.15

0. l0
(0.10)

0.15

(0. r 5)

1.44

0.65

4.6t
0.85

1.08

0.56

3t.07
14.37

1.84

0.01

0.24

0.06

0.01

23.73

6.63

3.74

0.01

0.03E
Total 56.72 34.21
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Notes to the Stanalone Financial Statements (Continued)

31 Commitments & contingent liabilities

(Amt in INR Millions)

2025
53.00

gumltw outstanding

18.00 53.00
Totsl

Ot) ofvillage vile Pade.

membqs area.

32 Errnings per share
March 2025 March 2024

Perticulars
for the yetr to equity

20,000 20,000
Numbs of equity shares at the begiming of the yw
Equity shiles issed duing the Yu
Nrmba of equity $us at the md of the year

Weighted average nunb6 ofequity shars outstanding duing the yw
Basic & diluted eamings per stmre (in NR)

20,000

20,000

7,333.63

l0

20,000

20,000

4,810.28

l0
Fme value pu sltre

33 Disclosure of amoutrt due to suppliers unrler "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act' 2006 (MSMED Act)' is as under:

March 2023

to my suppliu at the yetr 0.27
amout

lntrest due thseon at the md of erch accouring year

Prircipal momts paid to suppliers beyond the appointed day duing erch amuting year

Interest pai4 undtr Section 16 of MSMED Act, to supplios registqed uds the MSMED Aot beyond the appointed day

duing the year

Intue$ paid, other thm mds Section 16 of MSMED Acg to supplius registaed undq the MSMED Act' beyond the

aDpointed day during the vear
Amount of intwst due md payable for the period of delay in making Payment (which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the vear) but wiftout adding the interest specified uder this Act

Interest ffirued md remaining unPaid at the end of each munting year

Amount of futher interest maining due md payable evm in the suceeding yeuq until such date whm the intmst dues

above ue rctually paid to the mall entuprise, for the purpow of disallowance of a deductible expmditure mdcr stion

Dues to Miso & Small Enterpri*s have bsr detmined to the extmt such parties have ben identified on the basis of infomtion mllected by the Imagmmt. This hr ben relied upon by the

auditor.

Segment information

the purpose of rercurce allmation and asses$nilt of psfomane, thse re no roportable regments in aeordme with the requirmmts of Indiu Amuting tt-6t6 1o8:Oprmting Segmmt

ReportinT, notified uda the Companis (ndian Aouting Stan&rds) Rules' 2015

Ma

t
b

G

d

e

f

h

71 ^f the MSI\,{F.D

34

35 Disclosure as per Ind AS 115

(i) Contract balsnceg
The table that infomation about trade receivables, mntract assets ild contrrct liabilities from contrrct with customers is as follows:

As at As at

2024

As at

,2023
Particulars

Contract assets

Contract liabilities

March March
141.84 2.79

93.26

t62.88

0.76

14t.12

aesets balsnces are as follows:-(iD Chanses in contract
As at

March 31,2025

As at
March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

Particula13

Contract osseh

Contract ssts al the begiming of the yw
Les: Transfmed to rmivables

Add: Revenue rccognised (net ofinvoicing)

Balcnce st thc end of the y€r

o.76

0.16

93.26

93.26

o.76 93.26

0.76 93.26

Chanses in liebiliti6 brhncs are as
As at

March 31,2025

As at

March 31,2024

As at
April 01,2023

(iiD

@,',

t4t.32
t4t.32

t41.32 162.88

Particulars

Contract liabilitis

Contract liabilities at the begiming of the year

Less: lnvoie nised duing the yw
Add: Advme rrceived Aom customm (net of invoicing)

Add: Liability towuds acquisition ofdevelopment rights

Add: Rwmue recognised duing the yer (net of unbilled rwmue)

Bolance at the end of the year

162.88

103.69

0.76

260.72

123.19

2.60

81.36 22. '75
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Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued) (Amt itr rNR Millions)

36 Finencidriskmemgement

Compuy's operatioB. The Compmy's principal finmcial ssets include lm ud admes, rade ild other r*eivables, cuh md cch equivalents md other fimcial usets.
Thc Compuy is cxposed thrcugh its opentions to the following finmcial risks:
- Nftrket risk
- Credit rislq md
- Liquidity risk.

36.1 Market risk

mage md mntrol mket risk exposue within aceptable prmeteB, while optimisinc the retum.

36,2 Creditrisk

irotitutiom md others, o wll u credit experc to c6!omen, itrcluding outstanding reeiwblc.

Coreidering the me, the mmpany is not cxpo*d to expoctcd crcdit lm of csh md ruh equivalent md buk baluces.

trade reeivable re at the yeu end.

363 Liquidity risk mmegemeot

(i) Erpated maturity for finrncial lirbilities

kss than 1 year I to 5 ycon yeaE Total
31,2025

4?1.50 47t.50
payabls

-rot8l outstanding dues ofmicrc enterprise ud small enterprire
-total outstanding dus ofcrediloF other thu micro enterprise md small enterprise

5.13

L05

5.r0

5.13

1.05

5.10finilcial liabiliti6

3t,2024

payables
456.50

10.25

E.50

20.43

456.s0

t0.2s

8.50

20.43

-total oublanding dues of micrc mterprirc md small enterpri*
-total outst nding dues ofcredilos other tho micrc mterpris ed small enterprise

finmcisl liabiliti6

April 01,202i1

Borcwings 516.50 5 16.50
liabilitim
payabl6

-total outstanding dus ofmicro enterpris ud small enterprise
-total outstanding dus ofcreditorc other thm micro enlerprise ild small enterpris

Other fi nmcial liabilities

o.27

0.91

10.06

0.27

0.91

0.06

36,4 Fair value measurements

the carying mouts wuld be significmtly differcnt Aom the valus that would eventually be reeived or rttled.

March 31,2025 tmount vslue
FVTPL FVOCI Anmortised Totsl Level I I*vel 2 Lcvel 3

cost

Fitratrcial ss$eas

Noo-currctrt
Other linucial ureb
Curent
Tade roeiwbles

Csh md cch equivalms
Inm
Other finmcial uets cuent
Total

141.84

27.32

0.85

o.20

t41.84

2'1.32

0.85

o.20

170.22 170,22

Financial liabilitie
Currcnt
Bonowings

Tmde payeblw

Other fi mcial liabilitic
Total

47t.50

6. l8
5.10

471.50

6. l8
5.10

4t2.78 ,?8
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Fimncid risk
Mrrch 31,2024

FVTPL
lEouna

Annortised
cost

Totrt kvel I [,evel 2 Level 3

Fitrsnci8l sllcat
Nor{urctra
Othq fnucid csct3

Curot
Tn&Iwiwblo
Coh ad rch cquivalcns

Other Bmk Balance

I@s
Other fimcial rets
Total

t5.43

l5l.00
0.53

L50

t.o2

15.43

151.00

0.53

l.50

t.02

Finrncisl liabilitis
Curetrt
Borowings

Tnde payablc

Othrfimcid liabilitia
Total

456.50

It.75
20.4'

4s6.50

1E.75

20.41

495.6t 495.5t

April 01,2023 Carraing Amount Fair Velue
FVTPL FVOCI Level I l*vel2 I*vel3Ammortised Total

Cost

o.os

0.53

o.os

0.53

2.79

90.80

5.r0

t.67

93.47

2.'19

90,80

5. l0
1.67

91.4't

EscEs!d-$$E
NoHureoa
Lm
hv6tsnmts

Ohcr fimcial rets
Currcot
Tndereiwble
Croh md cuh cquiwlents

Oher Bank Balme
I,,m
Other fimcia.l rets
Told
Fitrsnci!l lirbiliti€
Noorureoa
Bonowings

lrry liabilitie
Other fi nmcial liabilities

Cunent
Borcwings

l*u liabilitis
Tmde payable

Other fi mcial lirbilitic

194,40 t94.40

5l 6.50 5 16.50

l.l9
10.06

Lt9
10.06

Totd 321,75 527.15

Thc frnancial instrumc[b rre stegorised into ahrcc levels based on the inputs ued to rrriv€ sa fair value measurcncnts rs described below:
Leel 1: Quoted pries (unadjuted) in rctive mskets for identical rets or liabiliti*
Lcvcl 2: Inputs other thm thc quoted prim included within Level I that ue obsemble for the sset or liability, either directly or indirectly; sd
Lod 3: Inputs bed on uobcemble market data

17 Crpiasl Mrnrgemcna

to lwimi$ thc aheholdr valuc & mintsin m optimal cagital sructure to rcdue thc 6st of capital.
ln order to mEintEin or adjut thc epital sructurc, the Compmy may adj6t the mout of dividends p8id to shseholdem, retum epital to shueholdes, isue new shm, rcduce debt or rcll res.

the Compmy's upital mmagcment, mongst other thin$, 8iru to eBure that it m@ts finmcisl coycnmts sttsched to the borcwings that define the oapital structure requirements.

Gearinq ratio
The gwing ratio et thc cnd of the reponing period m s follow:

Perticulan Merch 31, 2025 Mrrch 31,2024 April 01, 2023

Dcbts

Cuh & eh equivalents

Net debt (A)

Toasl cquity (B)
N€t deba to cquity ntio (A / B)

456.50

(l5r.53)

304.97

155,93

1.96

516.50

(es.e0)

420.60

59.79

7.03

'1"

4't t.50
(z',t.32)

444.tt
302.40

1.47

- 169.47 169.47



Armaan Real Estate Private Limited
CI N : U 70 1 09MH20 I 3PTC24 3917

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) (Amt in INR Millions)

38 Disclosures of Employee Bcnefits

38.f Gretuity
The Company operates an unfimded benefit Gratuity Plan.

The entity's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees. Gratuity is paid from entity as and when it becomes due and is paid as per The Payment ofcratuity
Act 1972.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and setdements.

(D Changes in Defined Benefit Obligations

Particulrrs March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Opening defi ned benefits obligation
Current service cost

Interesl cost

Acnurial losd (gain) on obligations - due to change in financial assumptions

Actuarial losV (gain) on obligations - due to change in demographic assumptions

Actuarial loss on obligBrions - due to experience

Past scrvice cost

Benefits Paid

Liability transfened in/ acquisitions

(Liability fansfened out/ divestnents)

Closing defined benefits obligrtlon

(iD Net Liability recognised in the balance sheet

0.66

0.28

0.05

0.06

0.20

1,26

0.32

0.02

0.23

0.02

0.08

0.66

Particulars 2025 March 31,2024
Present Value ofthe obligation Es al the end ofthe year

Net (Assel) / liability recognised in the balance sheet

(iiD Expenses recognised in Stetement of prolit and loss during the yerr

t.26
1.26

0.66

0.56

Particulers Mrrch 31.2025 March 31.2024
Curent service cost

Psst sewice cost

Interest Cost

Expected retum on plan assets

Erpenses recognised ir Statement of prollt rnd losc during the yerr

(iv) Erpenses recognised in other comprehensive income during the year

0.28

0.05

033

0.02

0.23

o.zs

Particulrrs March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Actuarial loss / (gain)

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income

ErpenseV (income) recognised ltr other comprehensive income during the year

(v) Actuarial assumptions - gratuity

0.26

0.26

0.10

0.10

Prrticulnrs 31,2025 March 31.2024
Discount rate

Rate ofsalary increase

Retirement age

Attrition rate

Mortality rate

(vi) Experience adjustmcnt - gratuity

6.72yo

l0.OOYo

60 years

8.00%
Indian Assurcd Lives

Morrality 2012-1 4 (Urban)

7.zoyo

10.00%

60 & 74 years

8.00%
Indian Assued Lives

Morrality 20 12-14 (Urban)

Particulars March 31.2025 March 31.2024
Deft ned benefi t obligation

Fair value ofplan assets

Funded stahts (suplus)
actuarial (gains)nosses on obligations - due to experience

Experience adjustnents on plan liability loss

Experienc€ adjustnents on plan ass€8 gain / (loss)

-q

1.26 0.66

0.20 0.08
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(vii) SenritivityAnalysis

determined based on reasonably possible changes ofthe respective assumptions occurring at the end ofthe reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulrrs March 31.2025 March 31.2024
Dlrcount Rste

PVO at the end ofthe period (Discount Rare - l%)
PVO at the end ofthe period (Discount Rate + l%)

Salary Growth Rete

PVO at the end of the period (Discount Fate - l%)
PVO at the end of the period (Discount Rate + l%)

Attrition Rrte
PVO at the end of the period @iscount Rate - l%)
PVO at the end oflhe period @iscount Rate + l%)

0. l4
-0.12

-0.09

0. l0

0.04

-0.04

0.08

-0.07

-0.07

0.07

0.03

-0.03

The sensitivity snalysis pres€nted above may not be representative ofthe actual change in the Defned Beneft Obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would
occur in isoladon ofone another as some ofthe assumptions may be corrclated.

ofthe reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the Defned Benefit Obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in lhe methods and assumptions used in prcparing the sensitivity unlysis from prior years.

(viii) Risk Anrlysis

tusk

Asset Liabilitv Matchine Risk
Thc plan ftces the ALM risk ss to the malching cash flow. entity has to manage payout based on pay as you go basis ftom own funds.

Interest Risk (discount rate risk)
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value ofthe liability requiring higher provision.

Mortalitv Risk

only, plan does not heve any longevity risk.

Salarv Risk
The present value ofthe defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries ofmembers. As such, an increase in the salary ofthe members more than
assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

The most rec€nt actuarial valuation ofthe plan assets and the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation were carried out at March 31,2025, March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023 by lvl/S. K. A. Pandit, Consultants & Actuaries. The present value ofthe defured beneft obligation, and the related current service cost, wer measured using the projected
unit credit method.

(ix) The erpected mrturity analysis ofdelined benefit obligation is as follows:

Delined Benefi t Oblisation
Perticulers Mrrch 31.2025 March 31.2024
lst Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Following Year

4th Following Year

5th Following Year

SumofYearc6To l0
Sum ofYears I I and above

0.00

0.05

0.08

0.08

0. l0
0.58

t.94

0.00

0.00

0.03

0.05

0.09

0.28

1.25

', ,Cu.,;''%,;'','--,
z>",'

I t. , \tt-:-'
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39 Ratiog
Thc following rrc uelytiul rrtio for tte yff crded Mrrch 31,2025

Sn Prrticuhn Numcntof Denominalor Marcb 31,2025 Mrrch 31,2024 7c vrriance
Rusoos if veriane is

more than 2570
a CrentRatio Crent Asscts Current Liabilities t.62 1.22 32.00o/o Change in ratio on accout

of increase in Cwent Assets

b Debt - Equity Rstio Total Debt Total Equity t.s6 2.93 46.74o/o Chmge in Debt Equity ratio
duc to increase in profit
durinq the vear

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Profit for the year (+) Finance

Cost (+) D€prcciation

lnterest (+) Principal
Rcpsymmt

2.26 l.6l 40.47o/o Change in mtio mainly on
account of increase in profit

d Rehun on Equity (ROE) Profit aft€r tax Average Total Equity 64.00o/o 89.ty/o -28.24o/o Change in mlio due to
increre in Net worth

e Invmtoru Tmovtr Ratio Revmre fromommtiom Avmre Invmtoru 0.94 0.78 19.680/o NA
f Tradc rcceivablcs tumover ratio Revenue from operations Avcrage Trade

Receivable

7.5t 52.28 -85.64% Change in ratio due

improvement in Trade

Recivable

s Trade payables tumover ratio Credit Purchas€ Average Trade Payable 23.93 39.17 -38.91% Trade Payable mtio decrease

mainly on accout of
dmme inpuchres

h Net capital tumover ratio Revenue from opcrations Working Capital 1.95 3.06 -36.28% Change in ration due to
increme in workinc caoital

I Net profit Margin Profit aft€r tax for the year Revenue from operotions 24.840/o 20.20% 22.950/o NA

J Retum on capital employed (ROCE) Profit b€for€ tax (+) Finanacc

Cost

Capital Employed 25.41o/o 22.15o/o 14.680/o NA

k Retlm on Investmen(Rol) Eoming before interest and taxes Total Ass€ts 24.7lo/o 15.93o/o 55.160/o Change in Retm on

increase in profit duing the
year

1:_.

,,,2). -\,'g''j
(_)..
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40 Additional regulatory requirements under Schedule III
(i) Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against current assets

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financial institutions, on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, the

Company is not required to submit Stock and debtors statement to the bank on monthly basis as also the Quarterly Information Statements.

(iii) Wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

(iv) Relationship with struck off companies

The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on the number of
layers) Rule,20l7.

(vi) Utilizstion of borrowed fund and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreigrr entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the lntermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any lund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries

(vii) Undisclosed Income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961, that has not been

recorded in the books of account.

(viii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the curent year

(ix) Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible asset

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including fught-of-Use assets) or intangible assets during the current year,

(xi) Title deeds of immovable properties held in name of the company

All the title immovable properties held in the name of company

(xii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements:
The company has not entered into any soheme of arrangement in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013

(xiii) Investor education and protection fund:
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

(xiv) Pending litigations & derivate contracts:
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(xv) Subsequent events:

There are no signihcant subsequent events that would require adjusfinent or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

(xvi) Previous year
(xiv) Previous year's

Iigur6s:.i",--:-.-

ngurpi}dve been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification/ disclosures.

': "r.'{!r
Ag.
/
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

41 Relsted prray disclosures

As per the Indio Amuting Standild-24 on "Related Party Disclosuro", list of related pmio identified of the Compmy ue re follows.

(i) List of relstcd prrtiB and relstiotrships with whom lrsnsscaion havc aaketr phce srd relationlhips ofconarol

Prrent ond ultimrte parent
Sri Irtus Dewlop€c ed Re8lty Limitcd (Foue rly hrwn as AKP
Holdinss Liniled and AKP Holdin$ Priwle Lidited) Holding Company

(Amt in INR Millions)

1.37

Key managerial pereonnel (KMPs)
Ramsh Hemudo Ludrmi
Rak6h Kail6h Gupta

Kmal Dalia

Mr. Gordhmbha Anudjibhai Mddaviya

Displlcement Compensatioo

R@pa Padil

Hardship Compenssaion

R@pa Pudil

Oflice Exoenser Paid

Sri tptus Developere ed Redty Limited (Fomerly knom s AKP
Holdins Limited md AKP Holdirss Privare Limited)

(b) Outstanding Balance

b
DirffiI
Direror we.f. Dwmbel 14,2024

Director w.e.f. Decembet 14,2024

Direclor till D@ember I6, 2024

c Key Mstrsgemetra Peruotrtrel (KMP) ofllolding Conprnie
M6. R@pa Pmdit

(ii) Balsoc6 Outstsnding rnd Trsnssctions during the yeer ended with related psrtiB sre rs follows:

(s) Disclosure itr respect of aransactions with Related Porties:

I Uosecured loan taken
Sn LottE Develope6 md Realty Limited fforrrcrly knottn as AK)'
Holdinps Lin,ited and AKP Holdin4s Priwte Lintited) 80.00

Unsecured loan repaid
Sri Lotus DevelopeE ud Realty Limited lFozerly lawn as AKP
Holdinps Liililed and AKP Holdin$ Priwte Liniled)

60.00

Sale oflnv$tments
S.i t E DwelopeE &d Realty Limited (Fomerly lspM 6 AKP
Holdins Limited md AKP Holdins Pri\de Limited) 0.05

0.35

t.28

0.4t

Sr, No. Nature of trrnsrctions Msrch 3 1.2025 Msrch 31.2024 Aoril 01.2023

gEcEC-@
Sri lptr Developea ud Redty Limited 1Fouerly kawn as AKP
Holdings Liotiled and AKP Holdings Priwte Linited)

42 '0.00' d{ot6 amut lcs dro INR Fiw dplMd.

43 These finucial statements have been approved for issue by the boad ofdirectors at its meeting held on Api126,2025

For T.P. Ostwal 6g Associates LLP
Chartered Accoutants
Fim Registration No: I 24444w/1 0Ol 50W

471.50

For and on behalfofthe Bosrd ofDirecton of
Am@ Real Estat€ Private Limitcd
CIN

391.50 45r.50

&,4 aw
Esha P. Shah

Partner

Membership No.143874

Piace: Mumbar

Date. Ap(1l26,2025

Ramsh Ludhani
Director
DIN No. 06992037

Rrkesh Gupta
DLfftor
DINNo. 10872369

Place. Mmbai
Date. Aprll26,2025

Placer Mumbai
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